1982

Mrs. Dudley Crafts et al v. Intermountain Power Project et al : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF KIND OF CASE

This is an action for a plenary review of a decision
of the State Engineer approving an application for a permanent
change of point of diversion, place and nature of use of water.

DISPOSITION IN LOWER COURT

The trial court granted a motion for summary judgment dismissing the complaint, approving the change application, and affirming the decision of the State Engineer.

RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

The appellants seek the reversal of the summary judgment and remand of the case for an evidentiary trial on the merits.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

An application to the state engineer, Change Application No. a-10864 (68 area), was filed on July 30, 1979, for a permanent change of point of diversion, place and nature of use of an unspecified flow and quantity of water, the rights to the use of which are evidenced by the "Sevier River Decree", sometimes referred to in the record as the "Cox Decree". The applicants are the Board of Water Resources, Delta Canal Company, Melville Irrigation Company, Abraham Irrigation Company, and Deseret Irrigation Company. The canal company and the irrigation companies are referred to in the record and in this brief as "DMAD". The application is on the printed form provided by the state engineer. (R. 017 - 027)

It is stated in the application, under the heading "Explanatory", that:

"This change application is filed at the instance and request of numerous stockholders of the DMAD companies, which stockholders have committed themselves to the sale of stock owned by them in the DMAD companies to Intermountain Power Agency for industrial use at the proposed Intermountain Power Project, to be constructed and owned by Intermountain Power Agency, a political sub-division of the State of Utah created pursuant to the Interlocal co-operation Act (Chapter 13, Title 11, UCA 1953, as Amended)." (R. 024, br.)

The entire explanatory portion of the application is included in the appendix to this brief, pages 20 to 28 . Briefly stated, the applicants propose to change the points of rediversion, place and nature of use of an unspecified flow and quantity of water of the surface flow of the Sevier River diverted by means of numerous wells, described in paragraph 9 of the application, from irrigation and stockwatering to industrial use. The irrigation use has been seasonal and largely non-consumptive, and the industrial use will totally consume the water. (R. 017 - 026). It is proposed that the water covered by this application will be commingled with other waters at the DMAD Reservoir and will be rediverted at a pumping station located on the west bank of the reservoir into two 48-inch pipelines which will carry it a distance of 11.2 miles to the Intermountain Power Project, where it will be commingled with underground water to be diverted by a combination of five deep wells (R. 024, 025) (Br.27)

Notice of the application was duly published as provided by law and some 67 protests were filed by individuals, irrigation companies, reservoir companies, corporations, and Delta City (R. 027, 028). A hearing was held by the state engineer and the application was approved. We quote from the State Engineer's memorandum decision:

"The State Engineer recognizes that the decreed rights below Gunnison Bend Reservoir are supplied from irrigation return flow and under certain circumstances those rights could be diminished because of the change in use. Approximately 20% of the water of the D.M.A.D. Companies will be diverted to the Project and totally consumed; however, during periods of good water supply the return flow from the irrigation may not suffer appreciable because of the industrial water. It is the opinion of the State Engineer that when there is a reduction in the return flow to the users below Gunnison Bend Reservoir, releases must be made to the lower users to compensate them for those losses. (Emphasis added.) (R. 029 - 030)

This action was filed to review the engineer's decision.

The defendants answered the complaint. The complaint and answers framed many factual issues which will be discussed in some detail in the argument.

The defendants filed a motion for a summary judgment dismissing the case and supported it by affidavits of experts to the effect that the change would not constitute an enlargement and would not result in interference with the rights of others, but would benefit the DMAD companies and their stockholders. The plaintiffs filed an affidavit of an expert stating that the proposed change will, if approved, have a detrimental effect on the water supplies of the plaintiffs. The affidavits will be discussed in detail in

The trial court made and entered an order and summary judgment granting the defendants' motion to dismiss, without formal findings of fact and conclusions of law, but stating generally in a recitation that the change application is in all respects complete and in proper form, that the changes proposed are authorized by law and that they do not conflict with the Sevier River decree dated November 30, 1936, and that the change application can be approved without impairing the existing water rights of the plaintiffs and that there is no genuine issue as to any material fact. This appeal was taken from the summary judgment so made and entered. (R. 308 - 311, 317, 318)

ARGUMENT

THERE ARE GENUINE ISSUES OF MATERIAL FACT PRECLUDING SUMMARY JUDGMENT

The appellants rely upon Rule 56(c) of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure which provides:

"The motion shall be served at least ten days before the time fixed for the hearing. The adverse party prior to the day of hearing may serve opposing affidavits. The judgment sought shall be rendered forthwith if the pleadings, depositions, answers to interrogatories, and admissions on file, together with the affidavits, if any, show that there is no genuine issue as to any material fact and that the moving party is entitled to a judgment as a matter of law...."

The question as to whether there was a genuine issue of material fact before the trial court when it granted the motion for summary judgment can best be considered and determined after reviewing the nature of the case.

This suit was filed pursuant to Section 73-3-14, UCA 1953, which provides for the review by the district court of decisions of the state engineer. Change Application No. a-10864 was filed in accordance with Section 73-3-3, UCA 1953, which, in pertinent part, provides:

"Any person entitled to the use of water may change the place of diversion or use and may use the water for other purposes than those for which it was originally appropriated, but no such change shall be made if it impairs any vested right without just compensation. Such changes may be permanent or temporary. Changes for an indefinite length of time with an intention to relinquish the original point of diversion, place or purpose of use are defined as permanent changes. Temporary changes include and are limited to all changes for definitely fixed periods of not exceeding one year. Both permanent and temporary changes of point of diversion, place or purpose of use of water including water involved in general adjudication or other suits, shall be made in the manner provided herein and not otherwise.

"No permanent change shall be made except on the approval of an application therefor by the state engineer. Such applications shall be made upon blanks to be furnished by the state engineer and shall set forth the name of the applicant, the quantity of water involved, the stream or source from where the water is diverted, the point to which it is proposed to change the diversion of the water, the place, purpose, and extent of the present use, and the place, purpose and extent of the proposed use and such other information as the state engineer may require...."

The appellants take the position that the statute requires the state engineer to consider, in acting upon each change application, the basic question of fact as to whether the change of place of diversion or use as proposed in the application, can be made without impairing any vested right without just compensation.

In the case of United States v. District Court, 121 Utah 18, 238 P 2d 1132, this Court had before it questions involving an application for change of point of diversion, place and nature of use of water acquired by the United States as appurtenances to land in Deer Creek Reservoir. The Court in its opinion discussed at some length factual questions to be considered, the duties of the state engineer and the nature of actions to review his decisions. We quote:

"The administration of the waters of the western arid states present many vital and complicated problems. The right to the use of water, although a property right, is very different from the ownership of specific property which is subject to possession, control and use as the owner sees fit. Such right does not involve the ownership of a specific body of water but is only a right to use a given amount of the transitory waters of a stream or water source for a specified time, place and purpose, and a change in any of these might materially affect the rights of other users of the same stream or source. Streams and other water sources are usually divided and subdivided between many users and the various divisions are used in turns of a designated number of hours per day or other period of time. A stream of water or other source may be supplied from many sources, some apparent and others unknown, and often where it goes to is difficult or impossible to trace. The amount of water in a stream usually varies from year to year, season to season, and sometimes from day to day and hour to hour. Most farms of this state are vitally dependent on irrigation waters and particularly during the later part of the irrigation season the demand is usually much greater than the supply, and much more land could be brought under cultivation if there was sufficient water. So the keeping of proper records, the equitable and orderly distribution and the taking of effective measures to conserve the waters are of vital importance to the well being of this state."

"The State Engineer's decisions, often have the effect of determining valuable rights. Neither an appropriation or change in diversion place or purpose or place of use can be initiated or accomplished under our law without his approval or the approval of the district court on review. His decisions require notice to all interested persons who may protest, whereupon the Engineer must investigate and hear evidence of all interested parties and he should approve or reject applications to appropriate, and applications for a change and issue or deny certificates that such applications have been accomplished in accordance with the law and the facts as he finds them...."

"The legislature provided that any person aggrieved by the engineer's decision may bring an action in the district court for a plenary review thereof" and that the hearing therein "shall proceed as a trial de novo". The use of the terms 'review' and 'trial de novo' indicate that the court shall review only the issues of law and fact which were involved in the engineer's decision. That is, whether the application shall be approved or rejected, and as a corollary thereto whether on all the evidence adduced at such trial de novo the engineer's approval or rejection should be sustained, rejected, or modified...."

The courts of this state and other Western States have, in many opinions, discussed and ruled upon changes of points of diversion, places and nature of use which constitute an impairment of vested rights within the meaning of the statute, quoted above, and similar statutes.

It has been held that the state engineer must determine whether there is reason to believe that the proposed change can be made without impairing vested rights.

Salt Lake City v. Boundary Springs Water Users
Ass'n, 2 U 2d 141, 270 P 2d 453.

Piute Res. & Irr. Co. v. West Panguitch Res. & Irr.
Co., 13 U 2d 6, 367 P 2d 855.

United States v. District Court, supra.

In the case of East Bench Irr. Co. v. Deseret Irr. Co.,
2 Utah 2d 170, 271 P 2d 449, the Court said:

"Under the circumstances of this case defendants have a vested right to the use of all of the water which would be available for their use without the proposed changes. If these changes decrease the quantity of water available for their use in the future, their vested rights will be impaired."

In the opinion of this Court on rehearing in the case of Piute Res. & Irr. Co. v. West Panguitch Irr. & Res. Co., 13 Utah 2d 6, 367 P 2d 855, which involved a change application, the question as to impairment of vested rights was posed as follows:

"Does the evidence show reason to believe that the winter waters now used for culinary, stock watering and land flooding can be stored in a reservoir to be built until the dry summer season, then used to supplement watering of the presently irrigated land without depriving lower water users of the Sevier River of the use of some quantity of water during the same period of time as would have been available to them without the change? Without such a showing this application should be denied. For if the operation of such a change will deprive the lower users of the same quantity of water during the same period of time as they would have had without this change, their vested rights will thereby be impaired. So this is the determinative question to be considered on this appeal."

The answer of the Court to the question, so posed, is quoted:

"This court has never adopted the so-called 'de minimus' theory, which we understand to be that an application either to appropriate or change the diversion or use of water should be approved if the effect on prior vested rights is so small that

courts will not be concerned therewith. This would seem to require the approval of an application if it were shown that the adverse effect on vested rights is very small, even though there is a definite showing of some such adverse effect. Of course, all of the estimates of the loss to the lower users by Mr. Lambert were many times more than the amount he estimated as being a 'de minimus' amount of loss to the lower water users. However, the correct rule on this question is that the applicant must show reason to believe that the proposed application for change can be made without impairing vested rights. This means that if vested rights will be impaired by such change or application to appropriate, such application should not be approved.

"The foregoing conclusion is especially applicable under the situation here disclosed; that a long river drains the water from many canyons covering a large territory over which there is an inadequate water supply to fully irrigate the land presently under cultivation and where the tributary water of many such canyons could be stored and used to supplement the irrigation of presently irrigated lands during the dry season to great advantage to the landowners who would receive advantages of the supplemental irrigation water. If a 'de minimus' reduction of the waters available to the lower water users were allowed under such conditions over and over again, the damage to the lower users would be unbearable."

It is stated in Corpus Juris Secundum, Vol. 93, page

975:

"While there is no fixed rule for determining whether a change in point of diversion will injure others, and each case depends largely on its own surrounding circumstances and conditions, there can generally be no change in point of diversion which will result in an enlarged use either as to amount or time."

In the case of East Bench Irr. Co. v. State, 5 Utah

2d 235, 300 P 2d 603, 607, the Court said:

"However, there are issues in every appeal from the engineer's decision which must be adjudicated. The court must adjudicate whether there is reason to believe that some rights may be acquired under such application without impairing vested rights of others. In some other cases the court must adjudicate the priority of conflicting rights, and in other cases, as we did in our previous decision in this case, it must adjudicate whether a foreseeable possible effect will constitute an impairment of vested rights...."

Having considered the nature of the issues in actions to review decisions of the State Engineer on applications to change the place and nature of use of water, we now will consider the intent, purpose and application of the summary judgment procedure.

This Court, and Courts in other states, have, in many cases, explained the purpose and application of Rule 56(c) of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure. We quote from a few:

In the case of Durham v. Margetts, 571 P 2d 1332, 1334, it is stated"

"The summary judgment procedure has the desirable and salutary purpose of eliminating the time, trouble and expense of a trial when there are no issues of fact in dispute and the controversy can be resolved as a matter of law. Nevertheless, that should not be done on conjecture, but only when the matter is clear; and in case of doubt, the doubt should be resolved in allowing the challenged party the opportunity of at least attempting to prove his right to recover...."

The following is quoted from Kidman v. White, 14 Utah 2d 898, 378 P 2d 898, 900:

"In confronting the problem presented on this appeal we have been obliged to remain aware that a summary judgment, which turns a party out of court without an opportunity to present his evidence, is a harsh measure that should be granted only when, taking the view most favorable to a party's claims and any proof that might properly be adduced thereunder, he could in no event prevail...."

See also, Sorenson v. Beers, (Utah) 585 P 2d 458, 460, where it is stated:

"Rule 56(c), Utah Rules of Civil Procedure, provides a summary judgment may be rendered where there is no genuine issue as to any material fact, and that moving party is entitled a judgment as a matter of law. This Court in a number of decisions has laid down the rule that in ruling on a motion for a summary judgment the court may consider only facts which are not in dispute and that motion should be granted only when all the facts entitling the moving party to a judgment are clearly established or admitted."

This Court has held that it takes only one sworn statement under oath to dispute the averments on the other side of the controversy and create an issue of fact.

Holbrook Company v. Adams, 542 P 2d 191.

A number of cases hold that it was not the purpose of Rule 56(c) to provide for a trial by affidavit:

Boyd v. Broyles, 163 Colo. 451, 431 P 2d 484.
Primock v. Hamilton, 168 Colo. 524, 452 P 2d 375.
Knowles v. Klase, 204 Kan. 156, 460 P 2d 444.
Harter v. Kuntz, 207 Kan. 338, 485 P 2d 190.

In the case of Boyd v. Broyles, supra, the Court said:

"In our view of the matter the trial court acted precipitously in granting Broyles' motion for summary judgment. It has been said so frequently that it is now almost trite, but summary judgment is still a very drastic remedy which is never warranted except on a clear showing that

there is no genuine issue as to any material fact, and summary judgment should never be so used as to compel a party to try his case on affidavits with no opportunity to cross-examine the affiants...."

We shall now apply the law discussed above to this case. The statute, Section 73-3-3, directs that an issue of fact be determined by the state engineer and on review by the court as to whether the proposed change "...impairs any vested right without just compensation." The pleadings present issues of fact, among others, as to whether the approval of the proposed change will interfere with and damage vested water rights, whether it will result in an enlargement of the right sought to be changed, and whether 27,000 acre feet of water has ever been pumped from the DMAD wells.

The affidavits of expert witnesses are in direct conflict as to the genuine issue of material fact regarding impairment of vested rights required by the statute to be ruled on by the state engineer and required by case law to be ruled on by decisions of this Court cited above.

The complaint alleges 22 causes of action (R. 001 - 032). Three separate answers were filed, one by the Intermountain Power Project and Intermountain Power Agency (R. 052 - 064), one for the Utah State defendants (R. 065 - 077), and one for DMAD (R. 078 - 090). All answers specifically deny allegations of impairment of vested rights and enlargement of applicants' water rights, (R. 004, 053, 054, 067, 080) which, as pointed out above, are genuine issues

of material fact. There are scores of denials of allegations of other facts, many of which are supportive of the allegations of impairment and enlargement.

The affidavit of defendants' expert Reed W. Mower, states that the proposed changes under Application No. a-10864, will not reduce the natural recharge into the artesian aquifers of the Sevier Desert ground-water basin (R. 115). The affidavit of Roger Walker does not treat application a-10864 separately, but states that after applications a-10863 and a-10864 are in effect, it will result in "...benefits to the public generally and/or Central Utah Water Company, Delta Canal Company, Melville Irrigation Company, Abraham Irrigation Company and Deseret Irrigation Company". (R. 126 - 129). He states that the benefits "...are more than adequate to compensate any and all other water users for any damages, if any there be, which might result from the affirming of such Memorandum Decisions by the District Court...." (R. 129, 130)

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