1982

Mrs. Dudley Crafts et al v. Intermountain Power Project et al : Brief of Corporate and Individual Respondents

Utah Supreme Court

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

V. ARGUMENT

POINT I.

THE TRIAL COURT CORRECTLY HELD THAT THERE IS "REASON TO BELIEVE" THE CHANGE APPLICATIONS CAN BE APPROVED WITHOUT SUBSTANTIALLY IMPAIRING ANY WATER RIGHTS OF PLAINTIFFS AND CORRECTLY GRANTED THE MOTIONS FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT.

A. The Criteria and Standards Governing Approval and Rejection of Change Applications

These answering respondents adopt and incorporate herein the portion of the Brief of Utah State Respondents which outlines in careful detail the Utah law with regard to criteria and standards governing approval and rejection of change applications.

The "reason to believe" rule discussed in the Brief of Utah State Respondents has been considered a number of times by this honorable court.

In Salt Lake City v. Boundary Springs Water Users Ass'n, 2 Utah 2d 141, 144, 270 P.2d 453, 455 (1954), the court stated:

"If the evidence shows that there is reason to believe that the proposed change can be made without impairing vested rights the application should be approved. The owner of a water right has a vested right to the quality as well as the quantity which he has beneficially used. A

change application cannot be rejected without a showing that vested rights will thereby be substantially impaired. While the applicant has the general burden of showing that no impairment of vested rights will result from the change, the person opposing such application must fail if the evidence does not disclose that his rights will be impaired." (emphasis added)

In United States v. District Court, 121 Utah 18, 242 P.2d 774 at 777 (1952), the court stated:

"Neither the decision of the Engineer nor of the Court on appeal therefrom are based on a determination of the facts or law applicable thereto but the application must be approved in both cases if the tribunal concludes that there is reason to believe that no existing right will be impaired." (emphasis added)

See also Whitmore v. Murray City, 107 Utah 445, 154 P.2d 748 (1944).

Other cases make clear that inherent in the ownership of a water interest is the right of the owner, upon proper application, to change the nature and/or place of use of said water based upon the highest and best use to which said water can be put. See Shurtleff v. Salt Lake City, 96 Utah 21, 82 P.2d 561 (1938); Sigurd City v. State, 105 Utah 278, 142 P.2d 154 (1943). See also Orange County Water District v. City, 173 Cal. App. 2d 137, 343 P.2d 450 (1959); City v. Yust, 126 Colo. 289, 249 P.2d 151 (1952).

B. Burden of Proof

The general burden of proof is on the applicant for a change to make a prima facie showing that there is "reason to believe" the change can be made without impairing the existing water rights of protestants. The burden then shifts to the protestants to prove

specifically and by competent evidence that their rights will be substantially impaired if the change is made.

To this effect, see Salt Lake City v. Boundary Springs Water Users Ass'n, 2 Utah 2d 141, 144, 270 P.2d 453 (1954) at 455, where the court stated:

"While the applicant has the general burden of showing that no impairment of vested rights will result from the change, the person opposing such application must fail if the evidence does not disclose that his rights will be impaired."
(emphasis added)

and Tanner v. Humphreys, 87 Utah 164, 48 P.2d 484 at 489, where the court stated:

"It would be impracticable to require the plaintiff to ferret out all of the ways in which others might perchance be injured and offer proof in negation thereof as a part of its affirmative case. The general negative as against injury to the protestants is sufficient to carry the case over a motion for non-suit in that respect."

See also Eardley v. Terry, 94 Utah 367, 77 P.2d 362 (1938).

Once the applicant has established a prima facie case to the effect that the change can be made without substantially and adversely affecting the water rights of a protestant, the burden of going forward shifts to the protestant to show how he will be injured. It is no sufficient answer to show only that uncertainties and doubts still exist as to whether the change will adversely affect the rights of a protestant or that future studies may reveal additional material information. The law favors water development and permits the applicant to proceed to see if he can perfect his right without injury to the rights of others. The courts have held many times that if all doubts and uncertainties had to be removed before a change of use could be allowed and work could proceed, substantial

and important rights would be improperly denied the owner of a water right and the water would not be put to its highest use, contrary to the public policy of this State.

In American Fork Irr. Co. v. Linke, 121 Utah 90, 239 P.2d 188 at 191 (1951), the court stated:

"We recognize plaintiff's duty to prove that vested rights will not be impaired by approval of their application, but we also recognize that such duty must not be made unreasonably onerous, to the point where every remote but presently indeterminable vested right must be pinpointed. And we cannot turn a deaf ear to every request which reasonably appears designed for a more beneficial use of water not impairing vested rights . . ."

We would add that under the "reason to believe" rule few changes in use of water to the highest and best use could be made if those seeking the change had to wait until technical and conclusive data were available. See Clark v. Hansen, 641 P.2d 914 (Utah 1981).

It is also important to understand that approval of a change application does not constitute a final adjudication of the water rights involved, i.e., that the change can assuredly be made without injury to the rights of others. It merely allows an applicant to proceed to make the proposed change and find out whether he can, as a matter of fact, use the water as changed without impairing other rights. If the change is made and injury then occurs, the protestant still has his day in court.

In United States v. Fourth District Court, 121 Utah 18, 21, 242 P.2d 774 at 777 (1952), the court stated:

"It merely requires an approval or rejection of the application and, if approved, authorizes the applicant to proceed with his proposed work and forbids him to proceed if rejected. It leaves the adjudication of the rights which the applicant may have or may acquire under the application, and the rights of the protestants, to the courts in another kind of a proceeding and not to the engineer who is merely an executive officer. Neither the decision of the Engineer nor of the Court on appeal therefrom are based on a determination of the facts or law applicable thereto but the application must be approved in both cases if the tribunal concludes that there is reason to believe that no existing right will thereby be impaired." (emphasis added)

In East Bench Irr. Co. v. State, 5 Utah 2d 235, 300 P.2d 603 (1956) at 607, the court stated:

"One such issue which cannot be adjudicated on such an appeal is the extent or priority of rights which the applicant hopes to acquire under such application. This for the obvious reason that an adjudication of such rights is premature for no cause of action for the adjudications of such rights can accrue at that time. Before a cause of action can arise to adjudicate that the applicant has established or perfected the rights which he seeks under such application, his application must first be approved and thereafter by compliance with its terms and provisions he must perfect the rights which he seeks under the application, and until this has occurred a suit to adjudicate that he has such rights is premature." (emphasis added)

And in Daniels Irrigation Co. v. Daniel Summit Co., et al., 571 P.2d 1323 (Utah 1977) at 1324, this court stated:

"The law appears to be well-settled that proceedings before the state engineer and appeals therefrom do not constitute adjudications of water rights. His function is a part of the executive branch of government, his duties are limited to administrative matters, and the proceedings before him are not judicial in nature.

Specifically in regard to change applications, the same rules apply. In Whitmore v. Murray City this court stated the following:

The office of state engineer was not created to adjudicate vested rights between parties, but to administer and supervise the appropriation of the waters of the state. In Eardley v. Terry, [citation] this court considered the rights and duties of the state engineer in approving or denying an application . . . and we there held that in fulfilling his duties, he acts in an administrative capacity only and has no authority to determine rights of parties. The same reasoning applies to the extent of the state engineer's authority when he determines to grant or deny an application for change of diversion, use or place. [Emphasis added.]"

See also Whitmore v. Murray City, 107 Utah 445, 154 P.2d 748 (1944); Bullock v. Tracy, 4 Utah 2d 370, 294 P.2d 707 (1956); East Bench Irr. Co. v. State, 5 Utah 2d 235, 300 P.2d 603 (1956); In re Application #7600, 63 Utah 311, 225 P. 605 (1924); Tanner v. Bacon, 103 Utah 494, 136 P.2d 957 (1943); Little Cottonwood Water Co. v. Kimball, 76 Utah 243, 289 P. 116 (1930); Lehi Irrigation Co. v. Jones, 115 Utah 136, 202 P.2d 892 (1949); and Brady v. McGonagle, 57 Utah 424, 195 P. 188 (1921).

The issue that was before the State Engineer and before the trial court in these cases is not unlike a procedure before a committing magistrate in a criminal case. The issue is not the innocence or guilt of the defendant. The State must show that there is reasonable cause to believe that a crime has been committed, and that the defendant committed it. If the required showing is made, the defendant is bound over to the district court for trial. The decision of the committing magistrate has not decided anything except that the defendant should stand trial. The defendant may

elect to put on his defense before the committing magistrate. He may claim an alibi or some other factual or legal defense, which he thinks is so strong that the committing magistrate should not bind him over for trial. If the committing magistrate, nevertheless, determines that he should stand trial, it does not mean that there has been an adjudication that his defenses of alibi, etc., are groundless, nor does it decide anything else about his guilt or innocence. That is not the function of the preliminary hearing.

Thus it is critical for the court here to keep in mind what the function of the state engineer's office is. A protest on the ground that an applicant will interfere with vested rights does not change the function of the state engineer. He goes no farther than is necessary to determine whether the application should be granted or rejected, and the issue remains the same on appeal to the court. The decision to grant the change does not adjudicate the competing rights of the parties any more than a decision to bind a defendant over for trial decides his guilt.

- C. The Mower affidavits constitute a prima facie showing that the changes can be made without substantially and adversely affecting the water rights of appellants. The Neeley affidavits do not raise a material issue of fact.

Mr. Mower's affidavit in Civil No. 7131 appears at R. 065-079. A detailed description of the background and issues raised in Civil No. 7131 appears in Appendix "C" of this brief. Suffice it to say here that this is a technical amendatory change requested in order to make applications to appropriate that had been filed by DMAD conform to proof of appropriation. The affidavit outlines Mr. Mower's extensive training and experience as a civil engineer

and hydrologist, indicates that he conducted a comprehensive study of the groundwater resources of the Sevier Desert groundwater basin to evaluate the groundwater resources thereof, including recharge, discharge, rates and routes of movement of groundwater from recharge to discharge areas, delineation of the extent and appraisal of the potential yield of each aquifer in said groundwater basin, uses of the water and the quality thereof. The affidavit also indicates that during the period of June, 1964 to October, 1979, he closely monitored the groundwater activities in the Sevier Desert groundwater basin, including the combined annual discharges from wells and the changes in groundwater levels and quality of water resulting therefrom, the results of which were published by the U.S.G.S. each year in cooperation with the Utah State Division of Water Resources in annual summaries of groundwater conditions in Utah. Mr. Mower further indicates in his affidavit that he has familiarized himself with each of the change applications, together with the Memorandum Decisions of the State Engineer, and that he is also familiar with the existing wells covered thereby and the lands irrigated thereunder, together with the proposed locations of the proposed IPP wells and the proposed uses of the waters therefrom.

Mr. Mower's affidavit concludes as follows:

" . . . the combined net effect on the Sevier Desert ground-water basin as a whole, which will result from pumping water by means of the DMAD wells under the proposed changes covered by Change Application Nos. a-10862 (65-475) and a-10863 (65-475) and by means of the proposed IPP wells under the proposed changes covered by the 12 individual well

change applications will be an increase in the water levels in the Sevier Desert ground-water basin as a whole, except for that part of said ground-water basin in the vicinity of the proposed IPP wells, as compared with the water levels in the Sevier Desert ground-water basin as a whole, which will result from pumping water by means of the DMAD wells and the said 12 individual wells solely for agricultural purposes . . ."
(emphasis added)

Mr. Neeley's affidavit in Civil No. 7131 appears at R. 163-170. The affidavit outlines his training and experience as a civil engineer. It indicates that he was employed by the Bureau of Reclamation as a professional engineer on July 20, 1927 and retired in 1963. It indicates that he was employed by appellants to undertake a study of the effects of the proposed change in July of 1980. It indicates that he studied and has evaluated certain U.S.G.S. water supply reports relative to and relating to the water supply in the Sevier Desert as used in the State Engineer's hearings, also some reports relating to the Sevier River and Desert area, U.S.G.S. manuals, procedures and State Engineer's reports and other data. He concludes as follows:

"12. The affiant states that at this juncture there can be no intelligent assessment of the effects on the Sevier River Desert Water supply.

13. The affiant further states that there can be no intelligent evaluation of the effects of the proposed proposals by the IPA Company until the present study by the U.S.G.S. under the sponsorship of the Utah State Engineer is completed and as programmed for 1981."

Mr. Neeley then proceeds to comment that the data on which Mr. Mower relies is ". . . incomplete data and out-of-date data . . ." and then concludes as follows:

"34. Your affiant is currently conducting studies of his own and will be able to supplement this affidavit with more factual data and analysis within 30 days from today's date."

Mr. Neeley filed a supplemental affidavit dated October 15, 1980 and filed on November 25, 1980 which appears at R. 188-192. He repeats his qualifications, makes some additional analyses, and makes the following statement:

"12. The affiant further states that there can be no intelligent evaluation of the effects of the proponents until the present study by the U.S.G.S. under the sponsorship of the Utah State Engineer is completed. Said evaluation is programmed for a 1981 completion."

Again in Civil No. 7140, we have a Mower affidavit which appears at R. 241-255 and a Neeley affidavit which appears at R. 361-390. A detailed description of the background and issues raised in Civil No. 7140 also appears in Appendix "C". Here the issues revolved around change applications which request conversion of usage of water from the eight large DMAD wells from agricultural to industrial purposes at the IPP. The Mower affidavit repeated Mr. Mower's qualifications as a civil engineer and hydrologist and his experience and knowledge of the Sevier Desert groundwater basin, his studies of the change applications and the Memorandum Decisions of the Utah State Engineer, and again Mr. Mower makes the following statement:

". . . it is the opinion of affiant that the combined net effect on the Sevier Desert ground-water basin as a whole, which will result from pumping water by

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